

# Fine Engineers & Contractors

**Worksite Safety Manual** 

# **Table of Contents**

#### 1. **Introduction**

- 1.1 Mission Statement
- 1.2 Purpose of the Safety Manual

#### 2. Management Commitment

- 2.1 Management's Responsibility
- 2.2 Employee Responsibility

### 3. Safety Policies and Procedures

- 3.1 General Safety Policies
- 3.2 Hazard Communication
- 3.3 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
- 3.4 Emergency Procedures
- 3.5 Reporting Incidents and Near Misses
- 3.6 Housekeeping
- 3.7 Drug and Alcohol Policy

### 4. Worksite Safety Rules

- 4.1 Access and Egress
- 4.2 Electrical Safety
- 4.3 Fire Safety
- 4.4 Hazardous Materials Handling and Storage
- 4.5 Machinery and Equipment Operation
- 4.6 Confined Spaces
- 4.7 Fall Protection
- 4.8 Lifting and Material Handling

# 5. Training and Education

- 5.1 New Employee Orientation
- 5.2 Ongoing Training
- 5.3 Specialized Training

### 6. Record Keeping and Documentation

- 6.1 Incident Reports
- 6.2 Training Records
- 6.3 Safety Inspections and Audits

### Introduction

#### 1.1 Mission Statement

At Fine Engineers & Contractors, safety is our top priority. Our mission is to foster a culture of unwavering commitment to the well-being of our employees, contractors, and visitors at every worksite. We believe that every individual deserves to work in an environment where risks are minimized, and safety is paramount.

# 1.2 Purpose of the Safety Manual

The purpose of this manual is to provide guidelines, procedures, and information necessary to maintain a safe and healthy work environment for all employees of Fine Engineers & Contractors. It outlines the company's commitment to safety and provides a framework for compliance with local, state, and federal regulations.

# **Management Commitment**

# 2.1 Management's Responsibility

- 1.Safety Policies and Procedures: Develop, communicate, and enforce safety policies and procedures that comply with relevant laws and regulations. Ensure that these policies are readily available to all employees.
- 2.Risk Assessment: Identify, evaluate, and mitigate workplace hazards and risks. Regularly review and update risk assessments to reflect changing conditions and technologies.
- 3.Training and Education: Provide ongoing safety training and education for all employees, ensuring they are well-informed about safety protocols, emergency procedures, and potential hazards associated with their work.
- 4.Safety Resources: Allocate necessary resources, including personnel, equipment, and funding, to support safety initiatives and ensure a safe working environment.
- 5.Incident Reporting and Investigation: Establish clear procedures for reporting and investigating accidents, near misses, and safety concerns. Take appropriate corrective actions to prevent recurrence.

- 6.Emergency Preparedness: Develop and maintain emergency response plans, including evacuation procedures and first aid measures. Conduct regular drills to ensure employees are familiar with these procedures.
- 7.Safety Communication: Foster open and effective communication channels for discussing safety concerns, ideas, and improvements. Encourage employees to report unsafe conditions without fear of retaliation.
- 8.Safety Committees: Establish safety committees or teams comprising both management and employees to collaborate on safety initiatives, reviews, and improvements.

# 2.2 Employee Responsibility

- 1.Compliance: Follow all safety policies, procedures, and guidelines established by the company. Adhere to relevant safety regulations and standards while performing tasks.
- 2. Training and Education: Participate in required safety training programs and actively seek opportunities to enhance your safety knowledge and skills.
- 3.Hazard Reporting: Promptly report any unsafe conditions, hazards, near misses, or accidents to your supervisor or appropriate personnel. Do not hesitate to report concerns, as early reporting can prevent accidents.
- 4.Safe Work Practices: Perform your job in a safe and responsible manner. Use provided personal protective equipment (PPE) correctly and consistently.
- 5. Equipment and Machinery: Inspect and maintain tools, equipment, and machinery according to company guidelines. Report any defects or malfunctions immediately.
- 6.Emergency Response: Familiarize yourself with emergency procedures, including evacuation routes and first aid. Respond calmly and appropriately in the event of an emergency.
- 7. Cooperation: Cooperate with safety committees and teams, offering input and suggestions for improving safety practices and procedures.
- 8. Accountability: Take responsibility for your own safety and the safety of your colleagues. Avoid engaging in any activities that compromise safety.
- 9. Continuous Improvement: Be receptive to feedback and actively participate in safety improvement initiatives. Encourage a culture of continuous improvement in safety practices.

10.Reporting Violations: If you witness unsafe behavior or violations of safety policies, report them to your supervisor or appropriate authorities. Do not hesitate to speak up to protect the safety of yourself and others.

# **Safety Policies & Procedures**

# 3.1 General Safety Policies

- •Safety as a Priority: Safety is our top priority. Every employee, contractor, and visitor must prioritize safety above all else.
- •Compliance with Laws: We will comply with all applicable safety laws, regulations, and industry standards to ensure a safe work environment.
- •Responsibility: Every employee is responsible for their safety and the safety of their colleagues. Reporting unsafe conditions and behaviors is encouraged.
- •Risk Assessment: We will regularly assess and address workplace hazards and risks. All employees must participate in hazard identification and mitigation.

#### 3.2 Hazard Communication

- •Training: Employees will receive training on hazard communication, including how to read labels, understand SDS, and recognize chemical hazards in the workplace.
- •Access to Information: Employees have the right to access SDS for all chemicals they work with and to request additional information about hazardous substances.
- •Proper Storage: Hazardous chemicals will be stored in designated areas, following specific storage requirements to prevent accidents and contamination.
- •Safe Handling: Employees must follow safe work practices when handling hazardous chemicals, including using appropriate PPE, maintaining good hygiene, and avoiding eating or drinking in chemical storage or work areas.

# 3.3 Personal Protective equipment's (PPE)

The correct use of PPE is mandatory when required by job tasks. Employees are responsible for inspecting, maintaining, and using PPE properly.

# 3.4 Emergency Procedures

Employees must be familiar with emergency procedures, including evacuation routes and first aid. Regular emergency drills will be conducted.

# 3.5 Reporting Incidents and near misses

At Fine Engineers & Contractors the safety and well-being of our employees are of paramount importance. To maintain a safe work environment, it is crucial that all employees promptly report any workplace incidents. An incident is defined as any unexpected event that results in, or could have resulted in, injury, illness, damage to property, or environmental harm. Similarly near miss is an event that could have resulted in an incident or injury but did not. Reporting near misses is crucial as they provide valuable insights into potential hazards and risks that can be mitigated before they lead to actual incidents.

### Reporting Procedures:-

- 1.**Immediate Reporting**: Employees must report incidents immediately to their supervisor or designated safety officer, even if they believe the incident is minor or had no immediate impact.
- 2.**Incident Report Form**: Use the provided incident report form to document details such as date, time, location, people involved, witnesses, and a detailed description of the incident.
- 3.**Medical Attention**: Seek medical attention if required. Your safety and health come first. Report any injuries, no matter how minor they may seem.
- 4.**Investigation**: The incident will be thoroughly investigated by designated personnel to determine its cause and to implement corrective actions.
- 5.**Follow-Up**: Employees involved in an incident will be informed of the investigation's findings and any necessary corrective actions.
- 6.Confidentiality: All incident reports will be treated confidentially, and information will only be disclosed on a need-to-know basis.
- 7.**Prompt Reporting**: Employees are encouraged to report near misses promptly to their supervisor or designated safety officer.
- 8. Near Miss Report Form: Utilize the near miss report form, which is similar to the incident report form, to document details of the near miss event
- 9.**Investigation**: Near misses will be investigated to identify the root causes and take preventive measures to avoid similar situations in the future.
- 10.**Feedback**: Employees who report near misses may receive feedback on the actions taken to prevent future occurrences.

# 3.6 Housekeeping

Effective housekeeping is essential for maintaining a safe and organized work environment. A clean and well-maintained workplace not only prevents accidents and injuries but also contributes to overall productivity and employee morale. All employees are responsible for maintaining good housekeeping practices in their respective work areas. Managers and supervisors are responsible for enforcing these practices and conducting regular inspections. Employees should report any housekeeping concerns to their supervisors immediately.

# 3.7 Drugs & Alcohol Policy

Fine Engineers & Contractors is committed to providing a safe and healthy work environment for all employees. The use of drugs and alcohol can impair an individual's judgment and coordination, which poses significant risks to workplace safety. This policy outlines the expectations, guidelines, and consequences related to the use of drugs and alcohol within the workplace.

### Policy Statement :-

- 1.**Prohibition**: The use, possession, distribution, or being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol while on company premises, during working hours, or while operating company vehicles or equipment is strictly prohibited.
- 2.**Prescription Medications**: Employees who are prescribed medications that may impair their ability to perform their job safely must inform their immediate supervisor and the HR department. The company will work with employees to ensure their safety while accommodating their medical needs when possible.
- 3.**Drug and Alcohol Testing**: Fine Engineers & Contractors reserves the right to conduct drug and alcohol testing in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Testing may be conducted for various reasons, including but not limited to pre-employment screening, post-incident investigations, and reasonable suspicion.
- 4.**Reporting**: All employees are encouraged to report any suspected violations of this policy to their supervisor or HR department. Reports will be handled confidentially to the extent permitted by law.

Consequences:- Violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. Employees found in violation may also be subject to legal action, depending on the severity of the offense and applicable laws.

# **Worksite Safety Rules**

### 4.1 Access and Egress

The Access and Egress Policy at Fine Engineers & Contractors is established to ensure the safe entry to and exit from all work areas, job sites, and facilities. This policy aims to minimize the risk of accidents, injuries, and delays related to accessing and leaving work areas while maintaining compliance with safety regulations and best practices.

**Policy Statement** 

#### 1.Access Control:

- a. Unauthorized personnel are prohibited from entering work areas or job sites.
- b.Access to restricted areas is granted only to employees and authorized individuals.
- c.Access points to restricted areas are clearly marked, and signage is used to indicate restricted access.

### 2. Egress Routes:

- a. All employees are informed of the nearest emergency exits and egress routes in their work areas.
- b. Egress routes are kept clear of obstructions and properly lit.
- c.Exit doors are not locked or blocked during working hours, and they are readily accessible.

#### 3. Evacuation Procedures:

- a. Employees are trained on emergency evacuation procedures, including assembly points and muster areas.
- b.Regular drills and exercises are conducted to ensure employees are familiar with evacuation routes and procedures.

#### 4. Obstruction Prevention:

- a. Employees are responsible for keeping walkways, aisles, and stairways free from any obstructions that may impede safe access or egress.
- b. Equipment and materials must not obstruct pathways or emergency exits.

# **5.Emergency Exit Maintenance:**

a. Emergency exits are inspected regularly to ensure proper functioning.

b. Any defects or malfunctions are reported immediately for prompt repair.

# 4.2 Electrical Safety

The purpose of this section is to establish guidelines and procedures for the safe handling, use, and maintenance of electrical equipment and systems to prevent electrical hazards and ensure the well-being of all employees.

#### General Guidelines:-

- 1.Qualified Personnel: Only qualified and trained personnel are allowed to work on electrical systems or equipment.
- 2.Inspection and Maintenance:
- •Regularly inspect electrical equipment for signs of wear, damage, or overheating.
- •Report any defects or malfunctions immediately to the appropriate supervisor or maintenance personnel.
- 3.Lockout/Tagout Procedures:
- •Before conducting any maintenance or repair work on electrical equipment, follow the company's Lockout/Tagout procedures to ensure that the equipment is de-energized and isolated.
- 4. Cord and Plug Equipment:
- •Inspect cords, plugs, and outlets for damage before use. Do not use damaged equipment.
- 5.Grounding:
- •Ensure that all electrical equipment is properly grounded to prevent electrical shocks.
- 6. Overloading:
- •Avoid overloading electrical circuits. Use the appropriate circuit breakers and fuses.
- 7. Extension Cords:
- •Use extension cords of the appropriate size and capacity for the intended purpose.

- 8. Water and Electricity:
- •Keep electrical equipment away from water sources and moisture. Do not use wet hands when handling electrical equipment.
- 9. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE):
- •Wear appropriate PPE, such as insulated gloves, when working with live electrical components.

### **Emergency Procedures:**

- 1. Electrical Shock:
- •In case of electrical shock, do not touch the victim. Shut off power if possible and call for emergency medical assistance immediately.
- 2. Electrical Fire:
- •Use a Class C fire extinguisher for electrical fires. Do not use water.

### Training and Education:

All employees must receive training in electrical safety, including the recognition of electrical hazards, safe work practices, and emergency procedures.

# 4.3 Fire Safety

Fine Engineers & Contractors is committed to ensuring the safety and well-being of all employees and visitors. This Fire Safety section outlines the procedures and guidelines to prevent fires, respond to fire emergencies, and evacuate safely in the event of a fire.

# **General Fire Safety Rules**

- 1.**No Smoking**: Smoking is strictly prohibited in all indoor areas and designated non-smoking zones. Designated smoking areas are provided and must be used.
- 2.**Electrical Safety**: Ensure all electrical equipment and wiring are in good condition. Avoid overloading electrical outlets or using damaged cords.
- 3.**Flammable Materials**: Properly store and handle flammable materials and chemicals in designated areas. Follow Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) guidelines for safe storage and use.
- 4. Fire Extinguishers: Fire extinguishers are strategically placed throughout the facility. Familiarize yourself with their locations and operation. Only use a fire extinguisher if trained to do so and if it is safe.

5.**Emergency Exits**: Maintain clear access to emergency exits at all times. Do not block exits, and ensure exit signs are visible and illuminated.

#### **Evacuation Procedures**

- 1. **Alert**: Upon discovering a fire or hearing a fire alarm, immediately alert others by shouting "Fire!" Activate the nearest fire alarm pull station if available.
- 2.Evacuate: Follow evacuation routes as indicated by posted signs. Do not use elevators during a fire alarm.
- 3.Assist Others: Assist colleagues and visitors with mobility impairments in evacuating the building. Designated personnel should provide guidance and assistance.
- 4. **Gather at Assembly Point**: After evacuating the building, proceed to the designated assembly point [Specify location]. Stay there until an "all-clear" is given.

#### **Fire Drills**

Regular fire drills will be conducted to ensure that all employees are familiar with evacuation procedures. Participation in these drills is mandatory, and employees should take them seriously.

### Reporting

All fire incidents, no matter how minor, must be reported to the [Designated Safety Officer or Supervisor]. This includes the use of fire extinguishers, alarms, or any issues related to fire safety.

### **Training**

Employees will receive training on fire safety and evacuation procedures during their orientation. Annual refresher training will also be provided to ensure everyone remains informed and prepared.

# 4.4 Hazardous material handling and storage

At Fine Engineers & Contractors, the safe handling and storage of hazardous materials is of paramount importance. This section outlines the procedures and guidelines to minimize the risk associated with these materials and ensure the safety of all employees, visitors, and the environment.

### **General Guidelines**

- 1.**Identification**: All hazardous materials must be clearly labeled with appropriate hazard symbols and information as per regulatory requirements.
- 2.Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS): Maintain MSDS for all hazardous materials on-site. Employees should have easy access to these sheets, and they should be readily available in the work area.
- 3.Storage: Store hazardous materials in designated storage areas that are well-ventilated, secure, and away from incompatible materials. Separate incompatible materials as required.
- 4. **Containers**: Use only approved containers for storing and transporting hazardous materials. Ensure that containers are tightly sealed and in good condition.
- 5.**Handling**: When handling hazardous materials, employees must use appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE) as outlined in Section 3.3 of this manual.
- 6.**Spill Response**: Develop and communicate clear procedures for responding to spills or leaks of hazardous materials. Employees should be trained on these procedures.
- 7. Fire Safety: Store flammable or combustible hazardous materials in designated areas equipped with appropriate fire protection systems. Ensure that fire extinguishers are readily available.
- 8.**Exposure Monitoring**: Regularly monitor the workplace for hazardous material exposure using appropriate monitoring equipment as necessary.

# 4.5 Machinery & Equipment Operations

#### **General Guidelines**

- •Authorized Personnel: Only employees who are trained and authorized should operate machinery and equipment.
- •Inspections: Conduct regular inspections before using any machinery or equipment to ensure they are in proper working condition. Report any defects immediately.
- •Maintenance: Follow a scheduled maintenance program to keep machinery and equipment in optimal condition.

•Safety Features: Familiarize yourself with the safety features of each machine and use them as intended.

### **Start-Up and Shutdown Procedures**

### Start-Up:

- •Always follow the manufacturer's instructions for starting and operating the machine.
- •Ensure the area around the machine is clear of obstructions and people before starting.

#### **Shutdown:**

- •Shut down the machine according to the manufacturer's instructions.
- •Wait for all moving parts to come to a complete stop before leaving the machine.

### **Machine-Specific Guidelines**

- •Machine Guards: Do not remove or bypass machine guards. They are there for your protection.
- •Lockout/Tagout: Follow lockout/tagout procedures when performing maintenance or repairs on machinery. This prevents accidental startup.
- •Noise Protection: Use hearing protection when operating noisy machinery.

# **Material Handling Equipment**

- •Load Capacity: Never exceed the recommended load capacity of material handling equipment.
- •Stability: Ensure the equipment is stable and on a level surface before lifting or moving loads.
- •Pedestrian Safety: Watch for pedestrians and signal when carrying loads that obstruct your vision.

# 4.6 Confined Spaces

A confined space is defined as any enclosed or partially enclosed space that is not designed for continuous human occupancy, and which may have limited access points. These spaces often present hazards such as poor ventilation, restricted mobility, and the potential for the accumulation of hazardous substances or dangerous atmospheric conditions.

### **Identification of Confined Spaces**

It is essential to identify and label all confined spaces within the workplace. These spaces may include, but are not limited to, tanks, vessels, pits, vaults, silos, sewers, and certain types of equipment.

### **Entry Procedures**

- 1.**Permit System**: Entry into confined spaces should be regulated by a confined space entry permit system. This system requires a detailed assessment of the space, identification of potential hazards, and the implementation of necessary control measures.
- 2.**Training**: Only authorized and trained personnel should be allowed to enter confined spaces. Training should cover the identification of hazards, proper use of personal protective equipment (PPE), and emergency procedures.
- 3.**Atmospheric Testing**: Before entering, the atmosphere of the confined space must be tested for oxygen levels, flammable gases, and other potential hazards. This should be done using appropriate gas monitoring equipment.
- 4.**Ventilation**: Adequate ventilation should be provided to ensure a safe atmosphere within the confined space. This may involve the use of blowers or exhaust fans.
- 5.**Communication**: Communication procedures, including the use of radios or signals, should be established between workers inside the confined space and those outside.
- 6.**Emergency Procedures**: Detailed emergency procedures, including rescue plans, should be in place before any entry into a confined space is permitted.

#### Hazards

Confined spaces can pose various risks, including:

- •Lack of Oxygen
- •Presence of Toxic Gases or Chemicals
- •Flammable Atmospheres
- •Engulfment Hazards (e.g., liquids, solids, or flowing substances)
- •Physical Hazards (e.g., machinery, moving parts, or electrical equipment)
- Poor Visibility

#### **Precautions and Controls**

To mitigate these risks, the following precautions and controls should be implemented:

- •Adequate Ventilation
- •Testing and Monitoring of Atmospheric Conditions
- •Proper PPE, including respiratory protection if needed
- •Lockout/Tagout procedures for equipment in or around the confined space
- •Continuous Communication with Entrants
- •Training and Drills for Confined Space Emergencies

### 4.7 Fall Protection

The Fall Protection section is designed to safeguard employees from potential fall hazards while working at elevated heights. This section outlines the policies, procedures, and equipment necessary to prevent falls and protect the well-being of all personnel involved in tasks that may expose them to such risks.

#### **General Fall Protection Policies**

- 1.**Identification of Fall Hazards**: Before commencing any work at elevated heights, a thorough assessment of potential fall hazards must be conducted.
- 2. Use of Guardrail Systems: Where feasible, guardrails should be installed along exposed edges to prevent falls. They should be regularly inspected for stability and integrity.
- 3.**Personal Fall Arrest Systems (PFAS)**: When guardrails are not feasible, or in cases where additional protection is required, employees must use a PFAS that is appropriate for the specific task.
- 4. Anchorage Points: Anchorage points must be secure, capable of supporting the weight of the worker, and inspected regularly.

### **Equipment and Inspection**

- 1.**Harnesses**: All harnesses must be inspected before each use for signs of wear, damage, or defects. They should fit snugly and be appropriately adjusted.
- 2.**Lanyards and Lifelines**: Inspect for wear, cuts, and other damage. Ensure they are compatible with the task and the conditions.

3. Connectors: Regularly inspect connectors for wear, damage, or defects.

# 4.8 Lifting & Material Handling

Lifting and material handling are common tasks in our workplace that, if not performed correctly, can lead to injuries and accidents. This section outlines the safe procedures and guidelines for lifting and handling materials to prevent incidents and protect the health and well-being of our employees.

#### **General Guidelines**

- •**Team Lift**: Whenever possible, use a team lift approach for heavy or awkward loads. Ensure all team members communicate and coordinate their actions.
- •Proper Equipment: Use appropriate material handling equipment such as forklifts, pallet jacks, and dollies for heavy or bulky items.
- •Clear Pathways: Keep work areas and pathways clear of obstacles to allow for safe movement of materials.

### **Proper Lifting Techniques**

To reduce the risk of injury while lifting, follow these guidelines:

- •Assess the Load: Examine the load's weight, shape, and stability before attempting to lift it.
- •Lift with Your Legs: Bend at the knees, not at the waist, when lifting. Keep your back straight and use the strength of your legs to lift.
- •Get a Good Grip: Use a firm grip on the object, and ensure your hands are dry and free of grease.
- •Keep Close: Keep the load close to your body to reduce strain on your back.
- •Avoid Twisting: Avoid twisting your body while lifting. Instead, pivot your feet to change direction.

Material Handling Equipment

When using equipment for material handling:

- •**Training**: Ensure that employees using equipment are trained and certified as needed.
- •Inspect Equipment: Regularly inspect equipment for damage and malfunctions. Report any issues immediately.

•Load Capacity: Do not exceed the equipment's load capacity. Follow manufacturer recommendations.

# **Training & Education**

# 5.1 New Employee Orientation

The New Employee Orientation program at [Company Name] is designed to ensure that all newly hired employees are introduced to our safety culture, policies, and procedures. This orientation aims to provide essential information and training to promote a safe and healthy work environment from day one.

### **Objectives**

- 1.**Safety Awareness**: To instill a strong awareness of safety practices, standards, and expectations among new employees.
- 2. **Compliance**: To ensure that new employees understand and adhere to local, state, and federal safety regulations and company-specific policies.
- 3.**Risk Reduction**: To minimize workplace accidents and incidents by educating new employees on potential hazards and safe work practices.

# 5.2 Ongoing Training

At Fine Engineers & Contractors we are committed to continuously improving safety standards and practices. Ongoing training is a crucial component of our safety program. It ensures that employees remain up-to-date with the latest safety protocols, equipment, and regulatory requirements. Ongoing training helps minimize workplace accidents, injuries, and incidents.

# **Frequency of Ongoing Training**

Ongoing safety training sessions will be conducted on a regular basis. The frequency of these sessions may vary depending on job roles, specific hazards, and regulatory changes. Generally, ongoing training sessions will occur:

- •Annually: All employees are required to attend an annual safety refresher training session.
- •As needed: Additional training sessions may be scheduled in response to changes in equipment, procedures, or regulations.
- •After incidents: Following any workplace incident, a review of the incident will determine if additional training is necessary to prevent similar occurrences.

### **Training Topics:-**

The content of ongoing training will cover a wide range of safety-related topics, including but not limited to:

- Hazard identification and assessment
- Emergency response procedures
- Proper use of personal protective equipment (PPE)
- Safe equipment operation and maintenance
- Chemical safety and handling
- First aid and CPR (Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation)
- Fire safety and evacuation procedures
- Ergonomics and injury prevention
- Workplace violence prevention
- Environmental safety practices

# 5.3 Specialized Training

Specialized training is designed to equip employees with the knowledge and skills necessary to safely handle unique or high-risk tasks, equipment, or situations within the company. This type of training goes beyond general safety guidelines and addresses specific hazards and requirements that are inherent to certain job roles or functions.

# **Objectives of Specialized Training**

- 1.**Hazard Identification**: Specialized training ensures that employees can recognize and understand the hazards associated with their specific tasks or roles.
- 2.**Safe Work Practices**: It provides employees with detailed instructions on how to perform their tasks safely, including the use of specialized equipment and tools.

- 3. Emergency Response: Employees are trained in specific emergency response procedures that may be unique to their roles.
- **4.Compliance**: Specialized training ensures compliance with industry standards, regulations, and best practices.

### **Examples of Specialized Training**

- 1.**Machine Operation**: Employees who operate complex machinery receive specialized training on equipment operation, maintenance, and safety precautions.
- 2. Chemical Handling: Workers dealing with hazardous chemicals undergo specialized training on proper storage, handling, and emergency response procedures.
- 3.Confined Space Entry: Employees entering confined spaces receive specialized training to recognize potential hazards, use protective gear, and follow entry and rescue protocols.
- 4. Electrical Safety: Electricians and maintenance personnel receive training on electrical safety, including lockout/tagout procedures and working with live circuits.
- 5. Work at height: Workers involved in tasks at heights are trained in fall protection systems, equipment usage, and emergency rescue procedures.

# **Record Keeping & Documentation**

# 6.1 Incident Reports

The purpose of incident reports is to document any accidents, injuries, near misses, or hazardous situations that occur within the workplace. These reports serve as crucial tools for identifying the root causes of incidents, implementing corrective actions, and preventing future occurrences.

### **Reporting Procedure:**

1.**Immediate Reporting**: All employees are required to report any incidents, no matter how minor, to their immediate supervisor or designated safety personnel as soon as possible after the incident occurs.

- 2. Complete and Accurate Information: When filling out an incident report, employees should provide detailed and accurate information about the incident, including date, time, location, individuals involved, witnesses, and a description of what happened.
- 3.**Injury and Illness Reporting**: In the case of injuries or illnesses, employees should also seek immediate medical attention if necessary, and ensure that medical professionals complete any required documentation.
- 4.**Near Miss Reporting**: Near misses (incidents that did not result in injury or damage but had the potential to do so) are equally important. These should be reported to help identify and rectify potential hazards before they lead to actual incidents.
- 5.**Supervisor's Responsibility**: Supervisors are responsible for promptly reviewing and submitting incident reports to the appropriate channels within Fine Engineers & Contractors.

### **Investigation and Follow-up:**

- 1.**Immediate Action**: Upon receiving an incident report, the appropriate personnel will initiate an immediate investigation to determine the root causes and contributing factors.
- 2.Corrective Actions: Based on the findings of the investigation, corrective actions will be implemented to prevent similar incidents from occurring in the future.
- 3.**Documentation**: All incident reports, investigation findings, and corrective actions taken will be thoroughly documented and retained for record-keeping purposes.

### **Confidentiality:**

All incident reports and related documentation will be treated with the utmost confidentiality. Information will only be disclosed to those who have a legitimate need to know for the purpose of investigation, reporting, or corrective action.

# 6.2 Training records

Maintaining accurate and up-to-date training records is essential to ensure that all employees are adequately trained in safety procedures and protocols. These

records serve as a documentation of the training received and verify compliance with regulatory requirements.

### **Responsibilities:**

- 1.**Training Coordinator**: The designated Training Coordinator is responsible for overseeing and maintaining training records. This individual will ensure that all training sessions are documented, and records are kept in a secure and organized manner.
- 2. Supervisors and Managers: Supervisors and managers are responsible for ensuring that their team members attend required training sessions and that the information provided is understood and implemented effectively.
- 3.**Employees**: Employees are responsible for actively participating in all required training sessions and seeking clarification on any information that may be unclear.

### **Record Keeping Process:**

- 1.**Training Plan Development**: The Training Coordinator, in collaboration with department heads, will develop a comprehensive training plan that outlines the required training programs for each employee category.
- 2.**Training Session Documentation**: After each training session, the trainer will complete a training record form. This form will include details such as date, location, topics covered, attendees, and the trainer's signature.
- 3. Employee Sign-off: Following completion of each training session, attendees are required to sign off on their training records to confirm their participation.
- 4.**Record Retention**: Training records will be retained for a minimum of [insert time frame as per legal/regulatory requirements]. After this period, records may be securely archived or disposed of in compliance with company policy and legal regulations.

# **Access to Training Records**

All employees have the right to access their own training records upon request. Additionally, authorized personnel, including supervisors, managers, and regulatory inspectors, may review training records for compliance and auditing purposes.

# 6.3 Safety Inspection & Audits

Regular safety inspections and audits are essential to identify potential hazards, evaluate the effectiveness of safety measures, and ensure compliance with safety policies and regulations.

### Responsibilities

- •Management: Responsible for scheduling and overseeing safety inspections and audits. They must also ensure that corrective actions are implemented in a timely manner.
- •Safety Officer or Designated Person: Conducts regular inspections and audits. They are responsible for documenting findings and reporting them to management.

### **Types of Inspections**

- 1.**Routine Inspections**: Conducted on a regular basis (e.g., weekly or monthly) to identify and rectify immediate safety concerns.
- 2.Comprehensive Inspections: In-depth assessments conducted periodically to evaluate overall safety performance and identify long-term improvement opportunities.

#### **Audit Process**

#### 1. Preparation:

- •Notify relevant parties about the upcoming inspection or audit.
- •Review previous inspection reports and corrective action status.

# 2. Conducting the Inspection:

- •Follow a checklist tailored to the specific work area or process being assessed.
- •Observe work practices, equipment condition, and adherence to safety procedures

# **3.Documenting Findings**:

- •Record observations, noting both positive practices and identified hazards.
- •Prioritize findings based on severity and potential impact.

# 4. Reporting:

•Provide a detailed report to management, including photographs if applicable.